
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Pensions 

Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Philip Corthorne (Chairman) 

Michael Markham (Vice-Chairman) 

Tony Eginton (Labour Lead) 

Peter Davis 

Beulah East 

 

  

 
 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 23 
SEPTEMBER 2015 
 

 

Time: 6.00 PM* PLEASE NOTE 
THE START TIME 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

  

Published: Tuesday, 15 September 2015 

 Contact:  Khalid Ahmed 
Tel: 01895 250833 
Email: kahmed@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=2344&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
For accessibility option regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 
 

 



 

Terms of Reference 
 
1. To review and approve all aspects of investment policy relating to the Pensions 

Fund, including authorisation or prohibition of particular investment activities. 
2. To review the Statement of Investment Principles and amend it when necessary. 
3. To agree benchmarks and performance targets for the investment of the Fund’s 

assets and review periodically. 
4. To keep the performance of the investment managers under regular review and 

extend or terminate their contracts as required.  To appoint new managers when 
necessary. 

5. To agree policy guidelines for the exercise of voting rights attached to the Fund’s 
shares. 

6. To review the appointment of specialist advisors and service providers and make 
new appointments as necessary. 

7. To consider the overall implications of the Council’s policies for employment and 
benefits issues and their impact on the Pension Fund and agree any strategic 
changes. 

8. To authorise the admission of other bodies to the Fund. 
9. To approve the appointment of persons to hear appeals under the Internal Dispute 

Resolution Procedure. 
10. To consider issues concerning the administration of the Fund, including approving 

responses to consultation papers. 
11. To consider and decide whether to approve proposals for discretionary enhanced 

early retirement packages for officers. 
12. The Corporate Director of Finance be authorised to take urgent decisions in relation 

to the pensions fund and investment strategy on behalf of the Committee, reporting 
back to the Pensions Committee any exercise of these powers for ratification. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

PART I - Members, Public and Press 

 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 Minutes of the meeting - 17 June 2015 1 - 4 
 

4 To confirm that items marked Part I will be considered in public and 
those marked Part II will be considered in private 

 
 

5 External Auditor Report on the Pension Fund Annual Report and 
Accounts 

5 - 50 
 

 

 
 



Minutes 

 

 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
17 June 2015 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 
 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors Philip Corthorne (Chairman), Michael Markham (Vice-Chairman), 
Peter Davis, Beulah East and Tony Eginton. 
 
Also Present: 
David O' Hara (Advisor). 
 
Apologies: 
Scott Jamieson (Independent Advisor).  
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Paul Whaymand, Nancy Le Roux , Sian Kunert , Ken Chisholm  Tunde  Adekoya and 
Charles Francis 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS - 25 MARCH AND 14 MAY 2015  
(Agenda Item 3) 
 

Action by 

 Agreed as accurate records. 
 
It was noted that the minutes of the final Investment Strategy Sub-
Committee had not been considered and would need to be attached to 
the next meeting of the Pensions Committee. 
 

 
 

Nancy Le 
Roux 

4. TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS MARKED PART I WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE MARKED PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 

 That Items 8, 9 and 10 be considered in private for the reasons stated 
on the agenda and for the rest of the items to be considered in public. 
 
At the start of the meeting, the Chairman highlighted that the incorrect 
Terms of Reference had been included in the agenda pack in error. A 
copy of the updated version, following changes to the Constitution, 
approved in February 2015 was circulated at the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. REVIEW ON PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT OF THE PENSION 
FUND  (Agenda Item 5) 

 

  
Consideration was given to the report which provided a review of 
financial markets and fund performance for the quarter ending 31 
March 2015. It was noted that the total value of the fund’s investments 
as at 31 March 2015 was £801.3m.   
 
Reference was made to the performance of the Fund for the quarter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



  

ending 31 March 2015, showing an outperformance of 0.5%, with a 
return of 4.8% compared to the benchmark of 4.2%. One year figures 
showed returns of 10.4% (substantially ahead of the RPI+4% target 
return and in line with the benchmark). It was noted that over the three 
year period, the Fund returned 0.8% pa over the benchmark; the 
absolute rate was 9.9%, which was well ahead of the required 
investment return. 
 
It was noted that the table (Performance Attribution Relative to 
Benchmark) contained a mixture of absolute performance and 
performance set against LIBOR which made it difficult to understand.  
Officers were asked to investigate how the data could be better 
presented in future.  
 
With regards to Outlook, the report summarised the issues which had 
confronted investors and also provided an overview of the global 
economic climate. Officers highlighted the history of the past 20 years 
had shown the importance of making timely and meaningful asset 
allocation adjustments to ensure strong Fund performance. 
 
RESOLVED -   
 

1. That the report be noted. 
 

Action by 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nancy Le 
Roux 

6. ADMINISTRATION REPORT  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 

 Consideration was given to the report which provided an update on the 
latest pension administration performance data and early retirements 
for the year 2014/15. 
 
In relation to Administration Performance Information, it was noted that 
after a significant low in October 2014, an overall performance 
measure of 90% had been maintained. Officers were commended for 
their ongoing partnership working with Capita which had resulted in a 
98.96% performance measure in May 2015. 
 
The report highlighted that in 2014/15 there had been 23 redundancy, 
8 ill health and 52 voluntary (over 60) early retirements.  
 
In terms of transfer requests, it was noted that for the period 1 April to 
31 May 2015, there were 10 requests for a transfer out quotation, of 
which 6 were in relation to new freedoms. Despite these quotes, 
Officers confirmed that there had been no actual transfer requests. 
Moving forward, it was noted that Corporate Pensions Manager would 
oversee all transfer requests and ensure the Council was proactive in 
highlighting the potential risks associated with moving funds. 
 
Referring to the Transfer Request information included on page 45 of 
the agenda, officers confirmed that they would contact Capita and 
request that it was more specific on its forms in future. 
 
RESOLVED -  
 

1. That the Pensions Committee: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



  

 
i) Reviewed the latest administration performance 

statistics. 
ii) Noted the latest information in respect of early   

retirements 
iii) Noted the details on transfer requests received since 1  

April 2015. 
 

Action by 

7. GOVERNANCE UPDATE  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 

 Consideration was given to the report which provided an update on the 
introduction of the local Pensions Board. 
 
It was noted that an Internal Audit was conducted on Pensions 
Investments during quarter four of 2014/15 and this investigation had 
specifically looked at the governance arrangements around Pensions 
Investments. The Committee was assured to learn that the Internal 
Audit assurance opinion was Substantial.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
   1. That the report be noted. 
 

 

8. REVIEW ON PERFORMANCE - PART II - FUND MANAGER 
REVIEW AND ACTIVISM  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

 

 This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or public 
present as the information under discussion contained confidential or 
exempt information as defined by law in the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985.  This was because it discussed ‘information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act). 
 
The confidential report provided Members with performance updates 
on recent meetings with Fund Managers and an overview of 
engagement activities over the last quarter. 
 
RESOLVED -  
  
    1.  That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

 

9. INVESTMENT REPORT  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 
 

 This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or public 
present as the information under discussion contained confidential or 
exempt information as defined by law in the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985.  This was because it discussed ‘information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act). 
 
The confidential report provided details of a governance strategy for 
approval for the investment activities of the Pension Fund. The report 

 

Page 3



  

set out the role and responsibilities of the Pensions Committee and 
new Pensions Board, as well as recommending a framework for the 
delegation of certain activities to the Corporate Director of Finance. 
 
RESOLVED -  
  

1.   That the Pensions Committee agree the Investment 
Framework, as detailed in the attached KPMG report to 
delegate specific powers to the Corporate Director of 
Finance to manage day-to-day investment activities of the 
Pension Fund. 

 

10. PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION CONTRACT  (Agenda Item 10) 
 

 

 This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or public 
present as the information under discussion contained confidential or 
exempt information as defined by law in the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985.  This was because it discussed ‘information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act). 
 
The confidential report provided a further update on Pensions 
Administration performance. 
 
RESOLVED -  
  

1.  That the Pensions Committee note the ongoing officer 
action in relation to the Capita Pensions Administration 
contract and agree to extend the notice period for a further 
year until 31 October 2016. 

 

 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 7.24 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Charles Francis 01895 556454.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 4



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 23 September 2015 
 

External Auditor Report on the Pension Fund Annual 
Report and Accounts 

 

 

Contact Officers  Nancy le Roux, 01895 250353 

   

Papers with this report  Deloitte: Report on the financial statement audit for the year 
ended 31 March 2015  

Pension Fund Accounts 2014/15 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The attached report summarises the findings of the External Auditor on the audit of the 
2014/15 Pension Fund Accounts.  The auditor has indicated that, subject to clearance of 
final points they expect to issues an unmodified opinion on the financial statements.  A 
verbal update on the final outcome will be given at the meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To note the auditor’s findings on the audit of the Pension Fund accounts for 
2014/15. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 

1. The Council as an administering authority under the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations is required to produce a separate set of accounts for the 
scheme’s financial activities and assets and liabilities. 

 
2. The contents and format of the accounts are determined by statutory requirements 

and mandatory professional standards as established by the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance (CIPFA) in their Code of Practice (The Code). 

 
3. The Pension Fund Accounts were subject to a separate audit by the Council’s 

external auditors, Deloitte LLP, which must be completed by 30 September 2015. 
 

4. Whilst Audit Committee formally approves the Council’s Statements of Accounts, 
which incorporates the Pension Fund Accounts, the Annual Report requires the 
approval of Pensions Committee.  This report on the Pension Fund accounts will 
also be taken to Audit Committee on 24 September 2015. 

 
 
SCOPE OF THE EXTERNAL AUDIT 
 

5. Auditors are required to communicate to elected Members matters of governance 
that arise from the audit of the financial statements.  These cover, in addition to an 
update on the audit status: 

 

• Significant audit risks 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 23 September 2015 
 

• Accounting and internal controls 

• Consideration of Fraud 
 

6. In addition, the Auditor requires a “Representation Letter” to be signed by 
management. The contents of this letter are set out at Appendix 1 to the attached 
Deloitte report. The letter has to include representations from management on 
matters material to the statement where sufficient appropriate evidence cannot 
reasonably be expected to exist.  

 
 
COMMENT ON THE CONTENTS OF THE REPORT 
 

7. The report gives a comprehensive account of the work undertaken during the audit 
and includes several auditor mandatory reporting requirements.  The report is 
positive and reports satisfactorily on the key audit risks.  There were no required 
adjustments to the Pension Fund accounts as a result of the audit testing. 
 

8. In relation to accounting and internal control systems, Deloitte have made one best 
practice recommendation regarding frequency of management reviewing 
reconciliation of fund manager and custodian to ensure management are confident 
in the pricing of Pension Fund asset valuations being reported throughout the year.  
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are contained within the body of the report 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The legal implications are mentioned within the report. 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

 

10 September 2015 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund 

Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 

on the Year Ended 31 March 2015 Pension 

Fund Audit 

 

Page 7



 

 

Contents 

 

The Big Picture 1 

Significant audit risks 3 

Insight - Internal control and risk management  8 

Responsibility statement 12 

Appendix 1: Draft representation letter 14 

Appendix 2: Audit adjustments 17 

Appendix 3: Consideration of Fraud 18 

Appendix 4: Independence and fees 19 

Appendix 5: Topical matters in the Pensions World 20 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees   1 

The big picture 

Page 9



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees   2 

The Big Picture 
 

We have pleasure in setting out in this document our 

report to the Pension and Audit Committees of the 

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund for the year 

ended 31 March 2015 for discussion at the meetings 

scheduled for 23 and 24 September 2015 respectively.  

This report summarises the principal matters that have 

arisen from our audit for the year ended 31 March 2015. 

This summary is not intended to be exhaustive but 

highlights the most significant matters to which we would 

like to bring your attention. It should, therefore, be read 

in conjunction with the report and the appendices 

thereto. 

 

 

Status of the Audit 

 

We are satisfied that the status of the audit is as expected 

at this stage of the timetable agreed in our audit plan. 

We have substantially completed our audit in accordance 
with our Audit Plan, which was presented to you prior to 
the commencement of the audit, subject to the satisfactory 
completion of the matters set out below: 

· Completion of final review process on the annual 
report; 

· Receipt of signed management representation letter 
(see appendix 1); and 

· Update of post balance sheet event review.  

We will report to you orally in respect of any modifications 
to the findings or opinions contained in this report that 
arise on completion of these matters.   

At the date of this report, and subject to the satisfactory 
completion of the outstanding matters referred to above, 
we expect to issue an unmodified audit opinion. 

 

“I am delighted to present our final 

report on the findings from our 

2014/15 audit.” 

Heather Bygrave, Audit Partner  
 

A reminder of our audit plan: 

· Materiality: £8.0m (2013/14: £7.3m).   

· Threshold for reporting misstatements: 
£0.401m (2013/14: £0.363m). 

· Significant risks over contributions, 
benefits, investments and management 
override of controls. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Delivering informed 

challenge

Providing intelligent 

insight

Growing stakeholder 

confidence

Building trust in the 

profession

Page 10



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees   3 

Significant audit risks 

This section explains the nature of significant risks, how these risks have been 
addressed by our audit work and our conclusions.  We also explain related 
presentational and/or disclosure matters within the financial statements. 

Page 11



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees 4 

Completeness and accuracy of contributions 
Significant audit risk 

Nature of risk    Deloitte view 

 

We have formed a satisfactory 

conclusion in this area based on 

the results from the procedures 

performed.  

Unlike the positions in the private sector, we are not required to issue a 

separate statement on contributions for the Fund. Nevertheless, in 

view of the complexity arising from the participation of different 

employers within the Fund, we have included the identification, 

calculation and payment of contributions as an area of significant risk. 

  

Impact on the financial statements and our audit challenge   

Errors in processing contributions can lead to issues such as non-

compliance with the Schedule of Contributions and deducting incorrect 

amounts from active members’ payroll, which can be costly to rectify 

and result in reputational damage.  

  

Work completed to address the significant risk    

We have performed the following testing to address the significant 

risks around contributions:  

l reviewed the design and implementation of controls present at the 

Fund for ensuring contributions from all Scheduled and Admitted 

bodies are identified and calculated correctly; 

l we performed tests of details to test whether each material 

income stream was calculated in accordance with the actuarial 

valuation and schedule of rates; and 

l we developed an expectation based on changes in membership 

numbers and changes in contribution rates to analytically review 

the contributions received in the year, the results of which fell 

within our tolerance level. 

  

Page 12



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees 5 

Valuation of investments 
Significant audit risk 

Nature of risk    Deloitte view 

 

We have formed a satisfactory 

conclusion in this area based on 

the results from the procedures 

performed.  

The scheme had investments of £801m as at 31 March 2015 and 

therefore a small degree of error in their valuation represents a 

significant risk of material misstatement. 

This risk is compounded given the use of investments in unquoted 

investment vehicles, like private equity houses, and the use of 

derivatives within the scheme. 

Private equity funds are complex to value and include an element 

of judgement on the part of the investment manager. In addition, 

further amounts are invested in managed funds which are complex 

to value due to the difficulty in visibility of the underlying 

investments. 

 

 

  

Impact on the financial statements and our audit challenge   

Incorrect valuations of investments can lead to misstatements in the 

financial statements impacting investment decisions and future 

recovery plans. 

  

Audit procedures completed to address the focus area   

The following tests were performed to address the significant risk 

around investments: 

l we have reviewed the design and implementation of controls 

present at the Fund for ensuring investments are valued correctly; 

l we have reconciled the total value of the investments held by the 

Fund as reported in the investment report from Northern Trust to 

the value of investments reported in the Net Assets Statement; 

l we have compared the valuations provided by Northern Trust to 

the reports provided by the investment manager; 

l we have performed a test of detail on a sample basis of quoted 

investment and compared the value reported by the Northern 

Trust to the quoted price obtained from Bloomberg, DataStream or 

other third party sources; 

l we have performed a test of detail on a sample basis of the 

unquoted pooled investments to the valuations received from the 

external investment managers; 

l we have performed analytical review procedures to assess the 

reasonableness of the change in market value of investments; and 

l consulted with our internal financial instrument specialists to 

ensure our testing approach was appropriate given the Plan’s 

specific investment strategy and portfolio. 

  

Page 13



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees 6 

Accuracy of benefit calculations 
Significant audit risk 

Nature of risk   Deloitte view 

 

Upon successful completion of 

our work with respect to member 

movements held, we expect to 

form a conclusion that we have no 

matters we wish to bring to the 

attention of the Committees. 

 

Changes were made to the Fund from April 2008 which introduced 

complexities into the calculation of both benefits in retirement and ill 

health and death benefits which are in addition to the annual increases 

required by the 1997 Regulation and Pension (Increases) Act 1971. 

Further changes have been implemented in 2014 which required the 

move to career average as the basis for calculation of benefits, 

effective from 1 April 2014. 

The risk noted was that benefits payable could be inaccurately 

recorded and that unauthorised payments could be made to non-

existent members. 

  

Impact on the financial statements and our audit challenge   

Incorrect benefit calculations or making payments to members who are 

not eligible can lead to misstatements in the financial statements, 

financial loss, pensioner’s being wrongly paid and reputational 

damage. 

  

Work completed to address the focus area   

The following tests were performed to address the significant risk 

around benefits:  

· we reviewed the design and implementation of controls present at 

the Fund for ensuring the accuracy, completeness and validity of 

benefits through discussion with the pensions team and testing 

that controls were in force during the year under review; 

· we obtained a schedule of benefits paid and selected a sample of 

benefits for detailed testing. The sample was tested through 

agreement to supporting documentation, and review of the 

calculation, by reference to the qualifying service, scheme rules 

and benefit choices made by the member;  

· confirmed that the Fund Account movements were consistent with 

membership movements by agreeing movements back to member 

documentation to verify the movement has been approved and 

recorded correctly; and 

· we developed an expectation of pensions payable based on the 

prior year balance, adjusted for changes in membership numbers 

and pension increases to analytically review the pension benefits 

paid in the year. 

  

 

  

Page 14



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees 7 

Management override of controls 
Presumed significant audit risk 

Nature of risk    Deloitte view 

 

We have formed a satisfactory 

conclusion in this area based on 

the results from the procedures 

performed. There are no matters 

to bring to the attention of the 

Committees. 

 

We have not identified any 

significant judgements or 

estimates used  by management 

and there is no indication of 

significant bias. 

In accordance with ISA 240 (UK and Ireland) management override is 

always a significant risk. The primary risk areas surrounding the 

management override of internal controls are over the processing of 

journal entries and the key assumptions and estimates made by 

management. 

  

Work completed to address the significant risk   

Our audit work included 

· we reviewed the controls around the financial reporting 

process, including segregation of duties, existence of reporting 

manuals, reviews and processing and approval of journal 

entries; 

· we have performed substantive testing on journal entries to 

confirm that they have a genuine, supportable rationale; 

· we have reviewed ledgers for unusual items and on a test 

basis investigated the rationale of any such postings; 

· we have reviewed significant management estimates and 

judgements such as year-end accruals and provisions and 

consider whether they are reasonable;  

· we have made enquiries of those charged with governance as 

part of our planning and detailed audit processes; and 

· we reviewed and challenged the financial statements and 

management judgements against the SORP, LGPS and UK 

pension regulations. 

  

 

 

Page 15



 

Final report to the Pension and Audit Committees 8 

Insight - Internal control and 

risk management 
 

In this section we set out our comments regarding your internal control and risk 
management processes. We communicate any significant deficiencies in the 
internal control environment to the audit committee.   

Page 16



 

9 

 

1 

5 

10 

2 

13 

2 

2 

9 

Risk management and internal control 

systems 

 

As set out in the “Briefing on audit matters” provided in the prior years, for controls considered to be ‘relevant to 
the audit’ we have evaluated the design of the controls and determined whether they have been implemented 
(“D&I”).  We have taken a substantive approach to the audit and have not tested the operating effectiveness of 
controls.  Our audit is not designed to provide assurance as to the overall effectiveness of the controls operating 
within the Plan. 

Risk management and control observations 

We discuss below the internal control matters that have come to our attention during the audit: 

Review of Internal Controls Reports of Investment Managers 

The Fund outsources its fund management and custodian operations to third parties. It is common for such 

service providers to commission reports on their internal control systems from their auditors. Such reports often 

comment on the operating effectiveness of the internal controls and highlight any exceptions noted as a result of 

the testing carried out which is documented below:  

For all of the below reports, the Reporting Accountant’s Report was unqualified except for those exceptions 

highlighted below. 

Bridging letters were obtained for periods between the sign offs of the AAF reports and the period under audit 

with no issues noted.  

 

Service Provider Year End Opinion 

qualified. 

Controls operating 

effectiveness testing 

performed by external 

auditor? 

Number 

of Exceptions 

Adams Street Partners No internal control report issued 

AEW UK Investments 31-Dec-14 No Yes  

Capita Hartshead 31-Dec-14 No Yes  

GMO 5-Oct-14 No Yes  

JP Morgan Asset Management 31-Mar-15 No Yes  

Kempden International 

Investments 

31-Dec-14 No Yes  

LGT Capital Partners 31-Dec-14 No Yes  

M&G Investments No internal control report issued, refers to custodian report issued by State 

Street Global Advisers, summarised below 

Macquarie Investments Report is not audited and does not report specific exceptions 

Newton Asset Management 30-Sep-14 No Yes  

Northern Trust 31-Mar-15 No Yes  

Permira Credit Solutions No internal control report issued, refers to custodian report issued by Northern 

Trust, summarised above 

Page 17



 

10 

 

3 

4 

3 

Risk management and internal control 

systems (continued) 

 

Key: 

 

 

 

 

 

For Adams Street Partners and Macquarie Investments, which do not issue an audit control report, we have held 

conversations with the investment manager to discuss their control environment as well as reviewing the control 

report of their custodian. 

 

We note that the identified exceptions above are regarding appropriate timely reviews or IT controls which we do 

not consider to have a significant impact on the adequacy of controls present within the Scheme as a whole, 

neither do they have an impact on the valuation of investments. 

 

We recommend management regularly review the control reports issued by its service organisations, particularly 

the exceptions raised and satisfy themselves that the exceptions do not relate specifically to the Fund and that 

necessary controls are in place to secure high performance of the service organisations’ duties. 

 

Differences between custodian and investment manager valuations 

We identified that there were a number of differences between the valuations provided by the investment 
managers and that provided by Northern Trust. These differences offset to an amount that was below our 
threshold for reporting uncorrected misstatements. We understand that management perform an annual 
reconciliation to ensure from a risk perspective they are comfortable with the differences, however we 
recommend management perform more regular reconciliations between these two different sources as there is a 
risk that these differences fluctuate throughout the year.

Service Provider Year End Opinion 

qualified. 

Controls operating 

effectiveness testing 

performed by external 

auditor? 

Number 

of Exceptions 

Ruffer LLP 31-Mar-15 No Yes  

State Street Global Advisors 30-Jun-14 No Yes  

UBS 31-Dec-14 No Yes  

No exceptions noted in the report 

Except for qualification 

Qualified report 

Page 18



 

11 

 

Responsibility Statement 

Page 19



 

12 

 

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement 
Our report is designed to help you meet your governance duties 

What we report  

Our report is designed to help the Pension and Audit 

Committees discharge their governance duties. It also 

represents one way in which we fulfil our obligations 

under ISA 260 to communicate with you regarding 

your oversight of the financial reporting process and 

your governance requirements. Our report includes: 

· Results of our work on key audit judgements 

and our observations on the quality of your 

Annual Report; and 

· Our internal control observations. 

 What we don’t report 

· As you will be aware, our audit was not 

designed to identify all matters that may be 

relevant to the board. 

· In addition, there will be further information 

you need to discharge your governance 

responsibilities, such as matters reported on 

by management, the administrator or by other 

specialist advisers. 

· Finally, our views on internal controls should 

not be taken as comprehensive or as an 

opinion on effectiveness since they have been 

based solely on the audit procedures 

performed in the audit of the financial 

statements. 

 

The scope of our work 

· Our observations are developed in the context 

of our audit of the financial statements. 

· This report should be read in conjunction with 

Briefing on Audit Matters which has been 

distributed in prior years. 

 

 We welcome the opportunity to discuss our report with 

you and receive your feedback.  

 

 

Deloitte LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

 

St. Albans 

10 September 2015 

 

This report has been prepared for the Pension and Audit Committees, as bodies, and we therefore accept 

responsibility to you alone for its contents.  We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since 

this report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. Except where required by law or 

regulation, it should not be made available to any other parties without our prior written consent. 

 

Page 20



 

13 

 

Appendices 
 

Page 21



 

14 

 

Appendix 1: Draft representation letter 
 

Deloitte LLP 

3 Victoria Square  

Victoria Street 

St Albans 

AL1 3TF 

Our Ref: HAB/RLG/2015 Date: 

 

Dear Sirs 

 

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund (the “Fund”) 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Fund 

for the year ended 31 March 2015 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial 

statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund, in accordance with the Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15, the financial transactions of the 

Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2015, and the amount and disposition of the Fund’s asset 

and liabilities as at 31 March 2015, other than liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the end of 

the Fund year.  

We acknowledge as members of London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund our responsibilities for 

ensuring that the financial statements are prepared which give a true and fair view, for keeping records in 

respect of active members of the Fund and for making accurate representations to you. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations. 

1. All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all 
the transactions undertaken by the Fund have been properly reflected and recorded in the 
accounting records.  All other records and related information, including minutes of Officer and 
Committee member meetings, have been made available to you. 

2. We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and operation of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

4. We are not aware of any significant facts relating to any frauds or suspected frauds affecting the 
Fund involving: 
(i). management; 
(ii). employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
(iii). others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

5. We have disclosed to you our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting 
the Fund’s financial statements communicated by members, former members, employers, 
regulators or others. 

6. We are not aware of any actual or possible instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, 
the effects of which should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

Page 22



 

15 

 

Appendix 1: Draft representation letter (continued) 

7. Where required, the value at which assets and liabilities are recorded in the net asset statement is, 
in the opinion of the Authority, the fair value.  We are responsible for the reasonableness of any 
significant assumptions underlying the valuation, including consideration of whether they 
appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the 
Fund.  Any significant changes in those values since the balance sheet date have been disclosed 
to you. 

8. We confirm the completeness of the information provided regarding the identification of related 
parties, and the adequacy of related party disclosures in the financial statements. 
 

We have made enquiries of any key managers or other individuals who are in a position to 

influence, or who are accountable for the stewardship of the Fund and confirm that we have 

disclosed in the financial statements all transactions relevant to the Fund and we are not aware of 

any other such matters required to be disclosed in the financial statements, whether under 

Statement of Recommended Practice – Financial Reports of Pension Schemes (revised May 2007) 

(“Pensions SORP 2007”), Code of Audit Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom in 2014/15: based on International Financial Reporting Standards or other regulations.  

9. We confirm that the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.  We do 
not intend to wind up the fund.  We are not aware of any material uncertainties related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern.  
We confirm the completeness of the information provided regarding events and conditions relating 
to going concern at the date of approval of the financial statements, including our plans for future 
actions. 

10. You have been informed of all changes to the Fund rules during the year and up to the current 
date. 

11. We have not commissioned advisory reports which may affect the conduct of your work in relation 
to the Fund’s financial statements. 

12. No claims in connection with litigation have been or are expected to be received. 

13. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of 
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

14. There have been no events subsequent to 31 March 2015 which require adjustment of or 
disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

15. There have been no irregularities involving management or employees who have a significant role 
in the accounting and internal control systems or that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

16. The pension fund accounts and related notes are free from material misstatements, including 
omissions. 

17. The Fund has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-
compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

18. The Fund has satisfactory title to all assets. 

19. We have recorded or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities, both actual and contingent. 

Page 23



 

16 

 

Appendix 1: Draft representation letter (continued) 

20. No transactions have been made which are not in the interests of the members of the Fund during 
the Fund year or subsequently. 

21. We confirm that: 

l all retirement benefits and schemes, including UK, foreign, funded or unfunded, approved or 

unapproved, contractual or implicit have been identified and properly accounted for; 

l all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for; 

l all events which relate to the determination of pension liabilities have been brought to the 

actuary’s attention; 

l the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of the scheme liabilities (including the 

discount rate used) accord with the directors’ best estimates of the future events that will affect 

the cost of retirement benefits and are consistent with our knowledge of the business; 

l the actuary’s calculations have been based on complete and up to date member data as far as 

appropriate regarding the adopted methodology; and 

l the amounts included in the financial statements derived from the work of the actuary are 

appropriate. 

22. All trades in complex financial instruments are in accordance with our risk management policies, 
have been conducted on an arm’s length basis and have been appropriately recorded in the 
accounting records, including consideration of whether the complex financial instruments are held 
for hedging, asset/liability management or investment purposes.  None of the terms of the trades 
have been amended by any side agreement and no documentation relating to complex financial 
instruments (including any embedded derivatives and written options) and other financial 
instruments has been withheld. 

23. We confirm that the Pension Fund Annual Report is compliant with the requirements of 
Regulations 34(1)(e) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 
and related guidance. 

24. We confirm that the information that is contained within the Pension Fund Annual Report and 
Accounts for the year to 31 March 2015 is complete, accurate and consistent with the information 
that is contained within the Accounts. 

 

We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of adequate enquiries of other officials of 

the Fund (and where appropriate, inspection of evidence) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can 

properly make each of the above representations to you. 

Yours faithfully 

 

Signed on behalf of London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund 

Page 24



 

17 

 

Appendix 2: Audit adjustments 
Unadjusted misstatements detail 

Uncorrected misstatements 

We report all individual identified uncorrected misstatements in excess of £401,000 (2014: £363,000) for the 

financial statements. There are no such misstatements that we would like to bring to the attention of the 

Committees. 

Disclosure misstatements 

Auditing standards require us to highlight significant disclosure misstatements to enable those charged with 

governance to evaluate the impact of those matters on the financial statements.   

There were no disclosure deficiencies noted as part of our audit.   

Page 25



 

18 

 

Appendix 3: Consideration of Fraud 
 

Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either fraud or error. The distinguishing factor between 

fraud and error is whether the underlying action that results in the misstatement of the financial statements is 

intentional or unintentional.  Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant to us as auditors – 

misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial reporting and misstatements resulting from misappropriation of 

assets. 

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with management and those charged 

with governance, including establishing and maintaining internal controls over the reliability of financial reporting, 

effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  As auditors, we 

obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 

ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 – ‘The auditor’s responsibility to consider fraud in an audit of financial statements’ 

requires us to document an understanding of how those charged with governance exercise oversight of 

management's processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the Fund and the internal control 

that management has established to mitigate these risks. It also requires us to presume there is a risk of fraud in 

respect of revenue recognition; however, considering the nature of the Fund and the revenue streams (mainly 

contributions and investment income) we have rebutted this risk. 

We have made inquiries of management and others within the Fund as appropriate, regarding their knowledge of 

any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Fund.  In addition, we are required to discuss the following 

with the Trustee: 

1. Whether the Trustee have knowledge of any fraud, alleged or suspected fraud 

2. The role that the Trustee exercise in oversight of the: 

• Assessment of the risks of fraud and 

• Design and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud 

3. The Trustee’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated because of 

fraud. 

4. Whether the Trustee have disclosed to us all information in relation to any fraud, alleged or suspected 

fraud 

Representations from the Committees in this area is included in the draft letter of representation attached as 

Appendix 1.

Page 26



 

19 

 

Appendix 4: Independence and fees 
 

As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to 

you on the matters listed below: 

Independence 
confirmation 

 

We confirm that we comply with APB Ethical Standards for Auditors and that, in our 

professional judgement, we are independent and our objectivity is not compromised. 

Fees 

 

Our fee for the audit of the 2015 accounts was £21,000 plus disbursements and VAT 

(2014: £21,000). 

Non-audit 
services 

 

In our opinion, there are no inconsistencies between APB Ethical Standards for Auditors 

and the plan’s policy for the supply of non-audit services or of any apparent breach of 

that policy. We continue to review our independence and ensure that appropriate 

safeguards are in place including, but not limited to, the rotation of senior partners and 

professional staff and the involvement of additional partners and professional staff to 

carry out reviews of the work performed and to advise as necessary. 

Relationships 

 

There are no business or personal relationships to report. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

20 

 

Appendix 5: Topical matters in the Pensions World 
For reference, the following developments in financial reporting or regulatory matters may impact the financial 

statements and operations of the Scheme: 
 

VAT 

VAT remains a key issue for pension funds and their sponsoring employers.  Pension funds often pay the wrong 

amount of VAT because the rules are increasingly complex and often misunderstood. 

Whilst it is likely that VAT legislation will rumble on for some time, there are a number of steps that a pension fund 

and its sponsoring employer should be taking now. 

HM Revenue & Customs issued two briefs on 26 November 2014 – 43/14: VAT on pension fund management 

costs and 44/14: VAT treatment of pension management services, by way of updated guidance following the CJEU 

judgements in Fiscale Eenheid PPG Holdings BV and ATP Pension Services (ATP). 

Employer/pension fund arrangements 

The European Court decision in Fiscale eenheld PPG Holdings BV cs te Hoogezand (PPG) suggests that there 

may be significantly more scope for employers to recover VAT for costs incurred in connection with the operations 

of a pension fund. 

In HMRC’s brief addresses the following themes:  

· The factors to be considered relevant when deciding whether pension-related services can actually be viewed 
as supplied to the employer include: (i) the payment and invoicing arrangements, (ii) “contemporaneous 
evidence” that the services are provided to the employer, and (iii) whether the employer is a party to the 
contract for services; 

· In a departure from their prior position, HMRC now accept that there are no grounds to differentiate between 
costs incurred in the administration of a pension scheme and the management of assets; and 

· HMRC view any recharges by an employer to the pension scheme as consideration for an onward taxable 
supply and consideration that VAT should be charged accordingly. 
 

Liability 

The European Court recently found in ATP Pension Services A/S (ATP) that defined contribution (DC) schemes 

should be treated on a par with other ‘special investment funds’. 

In the brief HMRC accepts that eligible pensions funds that many services provided by their managers or 

administrators should be, and always should have been, exempt from VAT. Trustees will need to determine 

whether any irrecoverable VAT has been incurred and take appropriate protective steps. 

 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of 
member firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity.  Please see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the 
legal structure of DTTL and its member firms. 

Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of DTTL. 

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved. 

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 2 
New Street Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. Tel: +44 (0) 20 7936 3000 Fax: +44 (0) 20 7583 1198. 

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Hillingdon

Pension Fund

Statement of Accounts
for the year to 31 March 2015

Page 31



Pension Fund Accounts and Net Asset Statement

Notes 31 March 2015

 Restated           

31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Contributions 5 37,383 35,099

Transfers In from other pension funds 6 1,164 750

Less: Benefits 7 (34,448) (34,748)

Less: Leavers 8 (1,365) (2,890)

Less: Management expenses 9 (6,834) (5,981)

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members (4,100) (7,770)

Investment income 10 16,887 15,546

11 62,982 35,715

Taxes on income (5) (7)

Net return on investments 79,864 51,254

Net Increase in the fund during the year 75,764 43,484

Net Assets at start of year 726,536 683,052

Net Assets at end of year 802,300 726,536

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Investment Assets 11 800,969 725,110

Investment Liabilities 12 (1,209) (649)

Current Assets 13 3,191 2,802

Current Liabilities 14 (651) (727)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 802,300 726,536

Paul Whaymand

Corporate Director of Finance

The Pension Fund Accounts summarise the transactions of the scheme and shows the net assets at the disposal of members.

They do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the scheme year. The

actuarial position of the scheme, which does take account of such obligations, is shown in the actuarial statement included in

the Pension Fund Annual Report and these accounts should be read in conjunction with this.  

   September 2015

Profit and losses on disposal of investments 

and changes in value of investments

2
Page 32



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

1. DESCRIPTION OF FUND

FUND OPERATION AND MEMBERSHIP

Admitted Bodies:

Genuine Dining Ltd Mitie Cleaning

Greenwich Leisure Mitie FM

Heathrow Travel Care Stag Security Services

Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice

Scheduled Bodies:

Barnhill Academy Nanak Sar Primary School

Belmore Academy Northwood Academy

Bishop Ramsey Academy Pinkwell School - New in 2014/15

Bishopshalt Academy Pentland Field School - New in 2014/15

Charville Academy Queensmead Academy

Coteford Academy Rosedale Hewens Academy

Cranford Park Academy Ruislip High School - New in 2014/15

Douay Martyrs Academy Ryefield Primary School - New in 2014/15

Eden Academy Stockley Academy

Guru Nanak Sikh Academy Swakeleys Academy

Harefield Academy Willows Academy

Haydon Academy Uxbridge College

Hillingdon Primary School - New in 2014/15 Uxbridge Academy

John Locke Academy - New in 2014/15 Vyners Academy

Lake Farm Park Federation - New in 2014/15 Wood End Academy

LBDS Frays Academy Trust

London Housing Consortium

Employers who contribute to the fund in addition to London Borough of Hillingdon are:

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund ("the fund") is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme and is

administered by London Borough of Hillingdon. The Council is the reporting entity for this pension fund. The following

description of the fund is a summary only. For more details, reference should be made to the London Borough of Hillingdon

Pension Fund Annual Report 2014/15 and the underlying statutory powers underpinning the scheme, namely the

Superannuation Act 1972 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations.

a) General: The fund is governed by the Superannuation Act 1972 and administered in accordance with the following 

secondary legislation:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

- the LGPS (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2014                                                                                                                                        

- the LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008 (as amended)                                                                                                                                                                                              

- the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended).                     

It is a contributory career average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme administered by London Borough of Hillingdon to

provide pensions and other benefits for pensionable employees of the London Borough of Hillingdon and a range of other

scheduled and admitted bodies within the borough. 

b) Membership: Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join the scheme, remain

in the scheme or make their own personal arrangements outside the scheme. But since 1 February 2013 all new employees of

the Council are automatically enrolled, with the option to opt out of the scheme within three months of auto enrolment.

The Local Government Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme, administered under the provisions of the Local

Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Miscellaneous

Amendments) Regulations 2014 to provide benefits for members and retired members. The benefits include a pension

payable to former members and their dependents and an automatic lump sum retirement allowance (for any member with

service pre 1 April 2008). The scheme is administered by CAPITA Employee Benefits, on behalf of the Council and the fund is

a separate entity from the Council and its accounts and balance sheet are separate financial statements.

The fund is financed by contributions from the Employers, Pension Fund members and by income from the fund's

investments. The Pension Fund accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the future.

The contributions from the London Borough of Hillingdon and other participating employers are set through the triennial

actuarial valuation at a rate sufficient to meet the long-term liabilities of the fund.

3
Page 33



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

1. DESCRIPTION OF FUND. (CONTINUED)

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Number of employers with active members 40 33

Number of employees in scheme

London Borough of Hillingdon 5,809 6,002

Other employers 2,237 1,522

Total 8,046 7,524

Number of Pensioners

London Borough of Hillingdon 5,541 5,505

Other employers 510 498

Total 6,051 6,003

Deferred pensioners

London Borough of Hillingdon 4,927 4,980

Other employers 1,351 1,331

Total 6,278 6,311

Pensions Committee 
Cllr Philip Corthorne (Chairman)

Cllr Michael Markham (Vice-Chairman) Cllr Beulah East

Cllr David Simmonds Cllr John Morse

Cllr Raymond Graham

Cllr Richard Mills

Pensions Board

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Accounts Preparation - The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the recommendations of CIPFA and comply

with both the Local Authority Accounting and Pension Statement of Recommended Practice.

b) Accruals concept - Income and expenditure are recorded on an accruals basis, except for transfer values which are

accounted for on a cash basis. Group transfers are accounted for under the agreement which they are made.

Mr John Holroyd (Pensioner/Deferred Scheme Member Representative)

(Non Voting)

Mr Andrew Scott (Active Scheme Member Representative) (Non Voting)

From 01 April 2015, a local Pensions Board has been created.

As at 31 March 2015 there were 8,046 active employees contributing to the fund, with 6,051 in receipt of benefit and 6,278

entitled to deferred benefits.

The pension fund investments are managed externally by fund managers: Adams Street Partners, AEW UK, Barings Asset

Management (Defunded 31 October 2014) GMO Investments, JP Morgan Asset Management, Kempen International

Investments, LGT Capital Partners, Macquarie Investments, Newton Asset Management, Permira LLP, Ruffer LLP, State

Street Global Advisors and UBS Global Asset Management. In addition there is one direct investment in a pooled fund vehicle

   
The fund is overseen by the Pensions Committee, which is a committee of London Borough of Hillingdon, the administering

authority. The performance of the fund managers is monitored by the Pensions Committee that consisted of the following

members in 2014/15:

Cllr Tony Eginton

The accounts have been compiled in accordance to the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United

Kingdom 2014/15 and underpinned by Local Government Pension Scheme (Management & Investments of Funds)

Regulations 2009 (as amended). The accounting policies have been drawn up in line with recommended accounting principles

as specified in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting and disclosed below.

4
Page 34



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical Judgements and Uncertainties

Item Uncertainties

Private equity Private equity investments are valued at fair

value in accordance with British Venture

Capital Association guidelines or

commensurate overseas equivalent. These

investments are not publicly listed and as such

there is a degree of estimation involved in the

valuation.

m) Unquoted private equity investments - Fair value of private equity investments are highly subjective in nature. They are

inherently based on forward-looking estimates and judgements involving many factors. Unquoted private equities are valued

by investment managers using IFRS fair value principles and guidelines set out by the International Private Equity and Venture

Capital Association (IPEV), which the British Venture Capital Association is a founding member. The Value of unquoted

private equities at 31 March 2015 was £35,275k (£37,146k at 31 March 2014).

n) Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty - The Statement of Accounts

contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the fund about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.

Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because

balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the net assets statement at 31 March 2015 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the

forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions

The total private equity investments in the

financial statements are £35,757k. There is

a risk that this investment may be under- or

overstated in the accounts.

l) Investment Income - Dividends from quoted securities are accrued when the securities are quoted ex-dividend. Interest on

cash deposits are accrued on daily basis.

h) Interest on property developments - Property is held in unit trusts for the pension fund, the return received is calculated in

accordance with the unit price at the Net Assets Statement date.

i) Contributions - are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. Normal contributions received during the year are in

accordance with the rates and adjustments certificate.

j) Benefits - are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. All benefits are calculated in accordance with the statutory

regulations in force at the relevant benefit date.

k) Transfers - are accounted for on a cash basis, as the amount payable or receivable by the scheme is not determined until

payment is actually made and accepted by the recipient.

c) Valuation of assets - Market-quoted investments: Equities are valued at bid market prices available on the final day of the

accounting period. Fixed income securities including short-term instruments are priced based on evaluated prices provided by

independent pricing services. For pooled funds, if bid prices are provided by the fund administrators then these are used,

otherwise the Net Asset Value is used. Private Equity is valued using the latest audited valuation from the Limited

Partner/General Partner. This is adjusted for any capital calls/distributions that have taken place since the date of the

statement. Unquoted investments for private placements and infrastructure are priced using discounted cash flow

methodology. All assets are disclosed in the financial statements at their fair value.

d) Foreign currency translation of assets and liabilities and forward foreign exchange contracts are converted into sterling at

the closing middle rates of exchange in the net assets statement. Overseas income is converted at rates of exchange ruling

when remitted.

f) Investment management expenses are recorded at cost when the fund managers/custodian invoice the Fund on a quarterly

basis. Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis.

g) Administration expenses recharged to the pension fund are monitored throughout the year in accordance with the budget

and are charged to the pension fund at the end of the financial year.

e) Acquisition costs of investments occur as brokerage commission when investments are purchased. They are recorded in

the cost figure on an accruals basis.

5
Page 35



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

4. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSMENTS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Restatement of Pension Fund Accounts

Published

31 March 2014 Restatement

 Restated

 31 March 2014

£000's £000's £000's

Contributions 35,099 35,099

Transfers In from other pension funds 750 750

Less: Benefits (34,748) (34,748)

Less: Leavers (2,890) (2,890)

Less:Administrative expenses (610) 610

Less: Management expenses (5,981) (5,981)

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with 

members (2,399) (5,371) (7,770)

Investment income 15,546 15,546

Profit and losses on disposal of investments 

and changes in value of investments 34,113 1,602 35,715

Taxes on income (7) (7)

Investment management expenses (3,769) 3,769

Net return on investments 45,883 5,371 51,254

Net Increase in the fund during the year 43,484 0 43,484

Net Assets at start of year 683,052 683,052

Net Assets at end of year 726,536 726,536

Accounting for Scheme Management Expenses

In 2014/15 CIPFA, through the Code of Practise on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom introduced the

financial accounting framework to ensure all costs associated with the management of LGPS assets are captured and

reflected in the financial statement in one form or another (through either the fund accounts or changes in values in the net

assets statement). The main drivers of the changes by the framework were the needs for comparable data, consistency of

reported costs and transparency of costs reporting across all LGPS funds. To this end, three cost categories, Investment

Management Expenses, Oversight and Governance and Pension Administration were introduced.

One of the main requirements of the revised code of practise in relation to fund expenses is the reporting of pooled fund

expenses. Practitioners are expected to disclose all expenses incurred both at partnership and fund of funds level. This

prompted the need to seek information from all pooled fund managers engaged by the fund in relation to total fees and

expenses charged to the fund at both levels and comparative figures for prior year was requested for completeness. The

information received indicated fees and expenses for both private Equity managers engaged by the London Borough of

Hillingdon Pension Fund were understated for prior year (2013/14), hence the relevant restatements were made to the fund

accounts and notes to both comply with the three new management expenses categories and provide comparative figures

for prior year. 

Prior period adjustments have been made to the Pension Fund 2014/15 published financial statements in relation to the

following:

6
Page 36



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

5. CONTRIBUTIONS

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Employers

Normal 23,621 21,098

Deficit funding 4,576 5,160

Members

Normal 8,410 8,133

Additional contributions 776 708

37,383 35,099

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Schedule of contributions by body £000's £000's

Employers

LB Hillingdon 20,827 20,733

Scheduled Bodies 7,081 5,250

Admitted Bodies 289 275

Members

LB Hillingdon 7,151 6,983

Scheduled Bodies 1,938 1,765

Admitted Bodies 97 93

37,383 35,099

6. TRANSFERS IN

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Individual transfers in from other schemes 1,164 750

7. BENEFITS

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Pensions (29,862) (28,114)

Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits (4,521) (6,105)

Lump sum death benefits (65) (529)

(34,448) (34,748)

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Schedule of benefits by employer

LB Hillingdon (33,985) (34,205)

Scheduled Bodies (416) (450)

Admitted Bodies (47) (93)

(34,448) (34,748)

Deficit Funding:- At the actuarial valuation on 31 March 2013 the fund was 72% funded, with the remaining 28% deficit to

be recovered over a period of 25 years with a common contribution rate of 28.7%.

7
Page 37



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

8. PAYMENTS TO AND ON ACCOUNT OF LEAVERS

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Individual transfers out to other schemes 1,365 2,890

1,365 2,890

9. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

The administering authority incurred costs in managing the fund for the period ending 31 March 2015 as follows:

31 March 2015

 Restated          

31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Administrative Costs 534 525

Investment Management Expenses 5,995 5,242

Oversight and Governance 305 214

6,834 5,981

10. INVESTMENT INCOME

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Dividends from equities 6,672 6,668

Income from fixed interest Securities 107 40

Income from index-linked securities 205 334

Income from pooled investment vehicles 1,833 1,818

Interest on cash deposits 83 157

Other (for example from stock lending 

or underwriting) 7,987 6,529

16,887 15,546

11. INVESTMENT ASSETS
Value                          

1 April 2014 

£000's

Purchases at 

cost

£000's

Sales 

proceeds 

£000's

Change in 

market value 

£000's

Value                   

31 March 2015 

£000's

Equities 148,058 29,090 (44,510) 3,684 136,322

Index-linked securities 41,191 36,172 (21,355) 8,826 64,834

Pooled investment vehicles 516,357 130,560 (124,264) 47,380 570,033

705,606 195,822 (190,129) 59,890 771,189

Other investment balances 1,131 4,130 913

Fund managers' cash 18,373 (1,038) 28,867

Total Investment Assets 725,110 62,982 800,969

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market value of

investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales of investments. The carrying

amount of all assets is quoted at fair value.

Transaction costs are included in the cost of purchases and sale proceeds. These include costs charged directly to the

scheme such as fees, commissions, stamp duty and other fees. Transaction costs incurred during the year amounted to

£218k (£539k in 2013/14). In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on investments

within pooled investment vehicles.

The above analysis of the costs of managing the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund has been prepared in 

accordance with the CIPFA guidance on LGPS management costs.

8
Page 38



11. INVESTMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Investment Assets and Liabilities by Fund Manager

Fund Manager

Market Value  

31 March 2015

£000's

Market Value                                  

31 March 2014

£000's                                                                                                                         

Restated

Adams Street Partners 22,988 21,199

AEW UK 24,623 0

Barings Global Asset Management 

(Defunded 31 October 2014) 0 63,046

GMO 65,729 0

JP Morgan Asset Management 38,447 77,397

Kempen International Investments 87,276 77,307

LGT Capital Partners 12,769 15,945

M&G Investments 32,965 25,822

Macquarie Infrastructure 13,886 5,270

Newton Asset Management 27,173 23,618

Permira Credit Solutions 4,029 0

Ruffer LLP 94,758 84,447

State Street Global Advisors 161,566 143,802

UBS Global Asset Management (Equities 104,844 115,829

UBS Global Asset Management (Property 64,119 54,368

UBS TAA 31,742 12,768

Other* 12,846 3,643

Total 799,760 724,461

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Counterparty and Currency Bought

£000's

Sold

 £000's

Unrealised 

Change £000's

Trade Date Settle Date

Northern Trust    GBP - JPY 11,410 (11,496) (86) 13/01/2015 17/04/2015

Northern Trust    JPY - GBP 2,485 (2,482) 3 22/01/2015 17/04/2015

Northern Trust    JPY - GBP 3,352 (3,368) (16) 30/01/2015 17/04/2015

Northern Trust    JPY - GBP 4,349 (4,383) (34) 02/02/2015 17/04/2015

Northern Trust    GBP - JPY 1,546 (1,582) (36) 16/02/2015 17/04/2015

Northern Trust    GBP - USD 20,492 (21,044) (552) 11/02/2015 15/05/2015

Northern Trust    GBP - USD 461 (478) (17) 02/03/2015 15/05/2015

Northern Trust    GBP - EUR 2,216 (2,224) (8) 09/03/2015 12/06/2015

Total unrealised gains 46,311 (47,057) (746)

Investment Assets by Asset Class 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Equities

UK quoted 108,883 121,335

Overseas quoted 27,439 26,723

136,322 148,058

Index Linked Securities

UK Public Sector quoted 17,642 14,006

Overseas Public Sector Quoted 47,192 21,357

64,834 35,363

Pooled Investment Vehicles

UK Managed funds - other 351,510 364,199

UK Unit Trusts  - property 87,738 50,427

Overseas Unit Trusts - other 95,028 70,413

Private Equity 35,757 37,146

570,033 522,185

Other Investment balances

Forward foreign exchange unrealised gain 0 288

Amount due from brokers 3 0

910 843

913 1,131

Cash deposits

Sterling 28,867 18,373

28,867 18,373

800,969 725,110

NB: There are no investments that are more than 5% of the Net Asset Value

Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

* Other includes pending trades, accrued income and cash held in Custody accounts,

independent of Fund managers not mandated to hold cash.

Outstanding dividend entitlements and recoverable withholding tax

As at 31 March 2015 eight forward foreign exchange contracts were in place for £47,057k with unrealised loss of £746k. The

objective of these contracts is to offset exposure to changes and fluctuations in currency exchange rates with the goal of

minimising exposure to unwanted risk. Any gain or loss in the contract will be offset by an equivalent movement in the underlying

asset value if converted into sterling. 

9
Page 39



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

11. INVESTMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

AVC Investments

12. INVESTMENT LIABILITIES

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000's £000's

Amount outstanding to brokers (463) (649)

Forward foreign exchange unrealised loss (746) 0

(1,209) (649)

13. CURRENT ASSETS

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Employers'  contributions due 391 197

Employees' contributions due 111 65

Debtor: London Borough of Hillingdon 0 266

Debtor: Other Entities 0 7

Cash balances 2,689 2,267

3,191 2,802

14. CURRENT LIABILITIES

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Creditor: Other Entities (394) (721)

Creditor: London Borough of Hillingdon (257) (6)

(651) (727)

Additional voluntary contributions paid by scheme members are not included in the accounts in accordance with Regulation

5(2)(c) of the Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 1998. The additional voluntary

contributions are paid by scheme members directly to Prudential Assurance Company, which manage these monies

independently of the fund and, as determined by the fund actuary, do not form part of the fund valuation.  

According to information provided by Prudential, the fund's AVC provider, value of assets under management as at 31 March

2015 was £6,488k and as at 31 March 2014 £6,444k (2013/14 restated to include bonus of £1,410k). Any transfer of additional

contributions into the fund during the year are included in the employee contributions value as detailed in note 5.

NB: The current assets all relate to amounts due from local government bodies with the exception of cash balances which is 

held with bodies external to government.

NB: The total of £394k other entities is due to bodies external to government, namely investment managers.

10
Page 40



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Classification of Financial Instruments

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Financial Assets £000's £000's

Fixed Interest Securities 57,833 35,363

Equities 136,322 148,058

Pooled Investments 439,607 429,343

Pooled Property Investments 87,743 50,427

Private Equity/Infrastructure 49,684 42,415

Derivative Contracts 0 288

Cash 28,867 18,373

Debtors 913 843

800,969 725,110

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Contracts (746) 0

Creditors (463) (649)

(1,209) (649)

799,760 724,461

b) Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

31 March 2015

 Restated          

31 March 2014

Financial Assets £000's £000's

Fair Value through profit and loss 63,742 35,427

Financial Liabilities

Fair Value through profit and loss (746) 288

62,996 35,715

c) Fair Value of Financial Instruments and liabilities

31 March 2015 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2014

Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value

Financial Assets £000's £000's £000's £000's

Fair Value through profit and loss 771,189 771,189 705,606 705,606

Loans and receivables 29,780 29,780 19,504 19,504

Total Financial assets 800,969 800,969 725,110 725,110

Financial Liabilities

Fair Value through profit and loss (1,209) (1,209) (649) (649)

Loans and receivables 0 0 0 0

Total Financial Liabilities (1,209) (1,209) (649) (649)

11
Page 41



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

d) Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value

Values as at 31 March 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totals

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss 596,838 87,716 86,635 771,189

Loans and Receivables 16,183 8,527 5,070 29,780

Total Financial Assets 613,021 96,243 91,705 800,969

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at fair 

value through profit and loss (1,209) (1,209)

Total Financial Liabilities (1,209) 0 0 (1,209)

Net Financial Assets 611,812 96,243 91,705 799,760

Values as at 31 March 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totals

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss 586,941 50,427 68,238 705,606

Loans and Receivables 12,316 3,940 3,248 19,504

Total Financial Assets 599,257 54,367 71,486 725,110

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at fair 

value through profit and loss (649) 0 0 (649)

Total Financial Liabilities (649) 0 0 (649)

Net Financial Assets 598,608 54,367 71,486 724,461

16. PRIVATE EQUITY VALUATIONS

17. NATURE & EXTENT OF EXPOSURE TO RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk and risk management

Quoted 

Market Price

Using Observable 

Inputs

With Significant 

unobservable inputs

Quoted 

Market Price

Using Observable 

Inputs

With Significant 

unobservable inputs

The Investment Sub Committee (ISC) undertook a review of the valuation processes for the Private Equity funds managed by

Adams Street Partners and LGT Partners on behalf of the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund and considered their

valuation processes adopted for illiquid markets. The ISC were assured that the valuation processes are rigorous and result in

valuations that, within materiality, represents fair value at the reporting date.

The fund's primary long-term risk is that the fund's assets will fall short of its liabilities. Therefore the aim of investment risk

management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains

across the whole fund portfolio. The Fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price

risk, currency and interest rate risks) and credit risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the fund manages its liquidity risk to

ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the fund's forecast cash flows.

Responsibility for the fund's risk management strategy rests with the Pension Fund Committee. Risk management policies are

established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Council's pensions operations. Policies are reviewed regularly to

reflect changes in activity and in market conditions.

Market risk - The risk that the fair value of cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market

prices. Market risk reflects interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risks. To mitigate against market risk the Pension

Fund invests in a diversified pool of assets to ensure a reasonable balance between different categories. The management of

the assets are placed with a number of fund managers with different performance targets and investment strategies. Each

Fund manager is expected to maintain a diversified portfolio in each asset class. Risks associated with the strategy and

investment returns are included as part of the quarterly reporting to Pensions Committee where they are monitored and

reviewed. 

12
Page 42



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

17. NATURE & EXTENT OF EXPOSURE TO RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(CONTINUED)

Other price risk  - Sensitivity Analysis

Asset Type
Potential market 

movements (+/-)

UK quoted equities 10.20%

Overseas quoted equities 7.93%

UK Public Sector quoted Index-Linked Securities 8.26%

Overseas Public Sector quoted Index-Linked Securities 8.26%

Corporate Bonds 4.10%

UK Managed funds - other 10.20%

UK Unit Trusts  - property 3.16%

Overseas Unit Trusts - other 7.93%

Private Equity/Infrastructure 4.57%

Other price risk - Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of

changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are

caused by factors specific to the individual instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the market. The

fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the fund for which the future price is

uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. Except for shares sold short, the maximum risk resulting

from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. Possible losses from shares sold short

is unlimited. The fund's investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and

other financial instruments is monitored by the Council to ensure it is within limits specified in the fund investment strategy

statement.

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, the fund has

determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for the 2014/15 reporting period.

The potential price changes disclosed above are broadly consistent with a one-third standard deviation movement in the value

of the assets. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates,

remain the same. Had the market price of the fund investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the

net assets available to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows:

13
Page 43



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

17. NATURE & EXTENT OF EXPOSURE TO RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(CONTINUED)
       
Asset type Value as at               

31 March 2015
Percentage Change Value on Increase Value on Decrease

£000's % £000's £000's

Cash and Cash equivalents 28,867 0.01 29,156 28,578 

Investment Assets

UK quoted equities 108,883 10.20 119,989 97,777 

Overseas quoted equities 27,439 7.93 29,615 25,263 

UK Public Sector quoted Index-

Linked Securities 17,642 8.26 19,099 16,185 

Overseas Public Sector quoted 

Index-Linked Securities 47,192 8.26 51,090 43,294 

UK Managed funds - Equities 101,728 10.20 112,104 91,352 

UK Managed funds - Bonds 67,314 4.10 70,074 64,554 

UK Unit Trusts  - property 87,738 3.16 90,511 84,965 

Overseas Unit Trusts - Equities 223,217 7.93 240,918 205,516 

Overseas Unit Trusts - Bonds 40,352 4.10 42,006 38,698 

Private Equity/Infrastructure 49,684 4.57 51,955 47,413 

Net Derivative assets (746) 0.00 (746) (746)

Investment income due 910 0.00 910 910

Amounts receivable for sales 3 0.00 3 3

Amounts payable for purchases (463) 0.00 (463) (463)
Total Assets Available to pay 

benefits 799,760 856,221 743,299

Asset type Value as at                 

31 March 2014
Percentage Change Value on Increase Value on Decrease

£000's % £000's £000's

Cash and Cash equivalents 18,373 0.00 18,373 18,373

Investment Assets

UK quoted equities 121,335 11.73 135,568 107,102

Overseas quoted equities 26,723 9.97 29,387 24,059

UK Public Sector quoted Index-

Linked Securities 14,006 6.73 14,949 13,063

Overseas Public Sector quoted 

Index-Linked Securities 21,357 6.73 22,794 19,920

UK Managed funds - Equities 155,020 11.73 173,204 136,836

UK Managed funds - Bonds 68,407 4.11 71,219 65,595

UK Unit Trusts  - property 50,427 2.38 51,627 49,227

Overseas Unit Trusts - Equities 136,622 9.97 150,243 123,001

Overseas Unit Trusts - Bonds 69,294 4.11 72,142 66,446

Private Equity/Infrastructure 42,415 5.41 44,711 40,121

Net Derivative assets 288 0.00 288 288

Investment income due 843 0.00 843 843

Amounts receivable for sales 0 0.00 0 0

Amounts payable for purchases (649) 0.00 (649) (649)

Total Assets Available to pay 

benefits 724,461 784,698 664,225

14
Page 44



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

17. NATURE & EXTENT OF EXPOSURE TO RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(CONTINUED)

Asset Type 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Cash 28,867 18,373

Fixed Interest Securities 172,500 173,064

Total 201,367 191,437

Asset Type Carrying amount                    

31 March 2015

1% -1%

£000's £000's £000's

Cash 28,867 289 (289)

Fixed Interest Securities 172,500 1,725 (1,725)

Total change in assets available 201,367 2,014 (2,014)

Asset Type Carrying amount as                         

31 March 2014

1% -1%

£000's £000's £000's

Cash 18,373 184 (184)

Fixed Interest Securities 173,064 1,730 (1,730)

Total change in assets available 191,437 1,914 (1,914)

Currency Risk is the risk to which the Pension fund is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. 

The Pension Fund has the ability to set up a passive currency hedge where these risks are perceived to be adverse. As at 31

March 2015 the Fund had no currency hedge in place for those managers who do not hedge their own portfolios. The following

table summarises the fund's currency exposure as at 31 March 2015 and as at the previous period ending 31 March 2014.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk to which the Pension Fund is exposed to changes in interest rates and relates to its holdings

in bonds and cash. Based on interest received on fixed interest securities, cash balances and cash and cash equivalents.

The fund's direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 is set out below. These

disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis - The fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to

the fund and the value of net assets available to pay benefits. A 100 basis points (1%) movement in interest rates is consistent

with the level of sensitivity applied as part of the fund's risk management strategy. 

The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates remain constant, and shows the effect

in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 1% change in interest rates.

Change in the net assets available to pay 

benefits

Change in the net assets available to pay 

benefits

15
Page 45



17. NATURE & EXTENT OF EXPOSURE TO RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Currency exposure by asset type

Asset value                        

31 March 2015

Asset value                       

31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Overseas quoted Securities 36,181 26,723

Overseas Corporate Bonds 31,869 69,294

Overseas Index-linked Bonds 40,191 21,357

Overseas managed funds 228,144 136,622

Private Equity/Infrastructure 49,684 42,415

386,069 296,411

Currency exposure by asset type

Asset value                        

31 March 2015

+6.03% -6.03%

£000's £000's £000's

Overseas quoted Securities 36,181 38,363 33,999

Overseas Corporate Bonds 31,869 33,791 29,947

Overseas Index-linked Bonds 40,191 42,615 37,767

Overseas managed funds 228,144 241,901 214,387

Private Equity/Infrastructure 49,684 52,680 46,688

386,069 409,349 362,789

Currency exposure by asset type

Asset value                 

31 March 2014

+4.32% -4.32%

£000's £000's £000's

Overseas quoted Securities 26,723 27,877 25,569

Overseas Corporate Bonds 69,294 72,288 66,300

Overseas Index-linked Bonds 21,357 22,280 20,434

Overseas managed funds 136,622 142,524 130,720

Private Equity/Infrastructure 42,415 44,247 40,583

296,411 309,216 283,606

Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

Currency risk sensitivity analysis - Following analysis of historical data in consultation with WM Company, the funds

data provider. The Fund considers the likely volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements to be 6.03%, based

on the data provided by WM. A 6.03% fluctuation in the currency is considered reasonable based on WM's analysis of

historical movements in month end exchange rates over a rolling twelve month period. This analysis assumes that all

variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 6.03% strengthening/weakening of the pound against various

currencies in which the fund holds investments would increase/decrease the net assets available to pay benefits as follows:

Change in the net assets 

available to pay benefits

Change in the net assets 

available to pay benefits

16
Page 46



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

17. NATURE & EXTENT OF EXPOSURE TO RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 (CONTINUED)

Summary Rating Balances as at                   

31 March 2015

Rating Balances as at                           

31 March 2014

Money market funds £000's £000's

Northern Trust Global Sterling Fund A AAAm 1,700 AAAm 200

Bank current accounts

Natwest (Capita) A- 838 A- 949

HSBC Plc AA- 151 AA- 1,118

Total 2,689 2,267

Credit Risk - The risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a loss for the other party by failing to pay for its

obligation.  

The Pension Fund's entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, with the exception of the derivative

position, where the risk equates to the net market value of a positive derivative position. Credit risk can be minimised through

careful selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions. The Pension Fund is also exposed to credit

risk through Securities Lending, Forward Currency Contracts and its daily treasury activities. The Securities Lending

programme is run by the Fund's custodian Northern Trust who assign four different risk management oversight committees to

control counterparty risk, collateral risk and the overall securities lending programme. The minimum level of collateral for

securities on loan is 102%, however more collateral may be required depending on the type of transaction. To further mitigate

risks, the collateral held on behalf of the Pension Fund is ring fenced from Northern Trust. Securities lending is capped by

investment regulations and statutory limits are in place to ensure no more than 25% of eligible assets can be on loan at any

one time. 

Forward Currency Contracts are with Northern Trust which holds a strong Standard & Poors credit rating of AA-. Their

financial stability across a wide array of market and economic cycles is demonstrated by the fact that they have held this

rating for the past twenty years. Their continued balance sheet strength and ratings outlook reflects the diversity of business,

consistent financial performance and conservative approach. Their credit rating is regularly monitored along with market

indicators and media coverage to ensure their credit worthiness is maintained.

The prime objective of the pension fund treasury management activity is the security of principal sums invested. As such it will

take a prudent approach to organisations employed as the banker and deposit taker. The Pension Fund will ensure it has

adequate but not excessive cash resources in order to meet its objectives. The bank accounts are held with HSBC which

holds a AA- long term credit rating (or equivalent) and Natwest (A-) across three rating agencies and they maintain their status

as well capitalised and strong financial organisations. Deposits are placed in the AAAm rated Northern Trust Money Market

Fund ring fenced from the administering company. Credit ratings, market indicators and media coverage are monitored to

ensure credit worthiness is maintained. The fund's cash holding under its treasury management arrangements at 31 March

2015 was £2,689k (31 March 2014: £2,267k) and this was held with the following institutions.

Liquidity Risk - The risk the Pension Fund will have difficulties in paying its financial obligations when they fall due. 

The Pension Funds holds a working cash balance in its own bank accounts (HSBC and Natwest - Capita) and Money Market

Fund to which it has instant access to cover the payment of benefits and other lump sum payments (£2,689k). At an

investment level the fund holds a large proportion of assets in instruments which can be liquidated at short notice, normally

three working days. As at the 31 March 2015 these assets totalled £596,838k, with a further £28,867k held in cash by fund

managers.

17
Page 47



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

18. ACTUARIAL POSITION

Price Inflation (CPI) - 2.50% Funding Basis Discount Rate - 4.60%

Pay Increases - 3.30%

19. ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Description 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

% P.a. % P.a.

Inflation /Pensions Increase Rate 2.4% 2.8%

*Salary Increase Rate 3.3% 3.6%

Discount Rate 3.2% 4.3%

Description 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 1,308,000 1,102,000

Assets                                                              802,485 726,536

Deficit                                                            505,515 375,464

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

No senior officers or Pension committee member had any interest with any related parties to the pension fund. 

These figures are presented for the purposes of IAS 26 only. They are not relevant for the calculations undertaken for funding

purposes or other statutory purposes under UK pensions legislation. This item is not recognised in the Net Asset Statement,

hence is considered not to be in opposition to the assertion included in the Net asset Statement surrounding future liabilities of

the fund.

It is required under IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" that material transactions with related parties which are not disclosed

elsewhere should be included in a note to the financial statements.

The London Borough of Hillingdon is a related party to the pension fund. The revenue contributions the Council has made into

the pension fund are set out in note (4) to the Pension Fund accounts.

The Fund's actuary, Hymans Robertson, carried out the latest triennial actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31 March 2013.  On 

the basis of the assumptions adopted, the valuation showed that the value of the fund represented 72% of the fund's accrued

liabilities at the valuation date. The total net assets of the fund at 31 March 2013 was £683,052k. The value of the deficit at

that date was £266,000k.

The valuation exercise resulted in the revision of employers' contribution rates set to recover the deficiency over a period of 25

years.  The total common contribution rate is 28.7% for the period of 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017.  

The contribution rates were calculated using the projected unit method and the main actuarial assumptions used were:

Following the introduction of IFRS the fund is now required under IAS 26 to disclose the actuarial present value of promised

retirement benefits. The calculation of this disclosed amount must be determined in accordance with IAS 19. The general

financial assumptions used in preparing the IAS26 valuation are summarised below:

*Salary increase are assumed to be 1% p.a. until 31 March 2015 reverting to long term assumption shown thereafter

An IAS 26 valuation was carried out for the fund as at 31 March 2015 by Hymans Robertson LLP with the following results:

18
Page 48



Notes To Pension Fund Accounts

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Governance

Key management personnel

Accrued pension                   

31 March 2015

Accrued pension                      

31 March 2014

£000's £000's

Corporate Director of Finance 1,241 1,128

Deputy Director - Strategic Finance
741 672

21. SECURITIES LENDING ARRANGEMENTS

22. STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES (SIP)

23. BULK TRANSFER

There were no bulk transfers into or out of the Fund during the financial year 2014/15.

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

Outstanding capital commitments (investments) as at 31 March 2015 totalled £56,975k (31 March 2014: £61,506k).

25. CONTINGENT ASSETS 

26. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No Post Balance Sheet events to report for 2014/15

There were two members of the pension fund committee who were deferred members of the pension fund. These members

are Cllr Philip Corthorne (Chairman) and Cllr David Simmonds. Each member is required to declare their interest at each

meeting.

Two key employees of the London Borough of Hillingdon hold key positions in the financial management of the London

Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund. These employees and their financial relationship with the fund (expressed as cash-

equivalent transfer values) are set out below:

On the 12th December 2006 the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund Committee agreed to engage Northern Trust

Global Investments Limited to carry out Securities Lending. As at 31 March 2015, securities worth £12,588k were on loan by

Northern Trust from our portfolio and collateral worth £13,757k was held within the pool including Hillingdon. In the same

period, a net income of £24k was received. 

The SIP is reviewed annually and a current version is available on the Pensions Fund pages of the Council's web site:

www.hillingdon.gov.uk and included in the Annual Report.

These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on unquoted limited partnership funds held in the Private Equity,

M&G, Infrastructure, secondary property (AEW) and Credit solutions (Permira) parts of the portfolio. The amounts called by

these funds vary both in size and timing over a period of between four and six years from the date of each original 

Three admitted body employers in the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund hold insurance bonds to guard against the

possibility of being unable to meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in favour of the pension fund and

payment will only be triggered in event of employer default.

19
Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting - 17 June 2015
	5 External Auditor Report on the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts
	Signed Pension Final report to the Audit Committee
	Pension Fund accounts 2014-15


